The Grange - High Street, Watchfield

(Formerly Beckett Home Farm)

BECKETT HOME FARM HOUSE, WATCHFIELD.

This property was part of the Barrington Estate of Beckett and was a farm of 160 acres. The
main house that still exists today is a long building that stands parallel with the high street
of Watchfield and is known as The Grange. It was entered into the first sale of the Estate
that took place on 16t October 1922, but it didn’t sell. It was entered into the next sale that
took place on 27t June 1927, but as a much smaller farm of 68 acres and didn’t sell either.
The census of 1911 gave the information that William Jefferies and his family occupied the

house and the sale brochure of 1927 listed that he was still the tenant.

We are grateful to the previous owners of the property, Robert & Janet Mawer (1984 - 2007) for
providing us with copies of documentation that allowed study of the continuation of the
line of occupation from this point. A schedule within a conveyance gave the information of
when the property left the Beckett Estate, when Walter Barrington (9 Viscount), on 12th
October 1928, sold it to Ernest William Smith Bartlett. On 24th June 1929, Ernest Bartlett sold
it to George James Hedges Wilson, but we don’t know the sale prices of either of the above
two transactions. There then followed a double deal that involved a middleman called
William Baker Driver of Cirencester. On 6t July 1931, Aubrey John Godfrey Porter of
Wokingham Lodge, Coate, Swindon, a Retired Grocer, paid £575 to George Wilson of The
Grange, Watchfield, and £65 to William Driver in order to take possession of ‘all that



messuage or dwellinghouse situate and known as Beckett Home Farm House in the Parish of

Watchfield, with the barn, stables, yard, garden and meadow lands belonging thereto.’
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Aubrey Porter didn’t stay long at The Grange, but the year before he left it, he managed to
get himself a fine for allowing his motor car to be stationary without proper lights and it
cost him 10 shillings (50p. North Wilts Herald 22nd Jan 1932). A conveyance dated 20t March 1933,
provided the information of when the name of the property was changed. Mr Walter
Edward Jefferies of Sheephouse Farm, Charney, Berkshire, who was described as a Farmer,
purchased for the sum of £1250, ‘all that messuage or dwellinghouse situate at Watchfield,
formerly known as Beckett Home Farm House, but now known as The Grange, Watchfield etc.’
Aubrey Porter had managed to double his money in two years! It is likely that Walter
Jefferies had a family connection with William Jefferies who had occupied the farm at
Watchfield for over 20 years. The census for 1911 recorded that William was born in Goosey

which is very close to Sheephouse Farm and Charney Bassett.



William James Jefferies in 1911

@ 1911 Census For England & Wales
Q Watchfield Shrivenham, Watchfield, Berkshire & Oxfordshire, England
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Household members (6 people) & Copy to clipboard
First name(s) Last name Relationship Marital status Sex Age Birth year Occupation Birth place
William James Jefferies Head Married Male 40 1871 Farmer Goosey Berks

May Swaffield Jefferies Wife Married Female 37 1874 - Bourton Berks
Edward Jefferies Son - Male 1 1910 - Blunsdon Wilts
Violet Mary Jefferies Daughter - Female 0 ”wn - Watchfield Berks
Ada Mary Cook Sister in law Single Female 40 1871 Private means Bourton Berks

Gladys Kate Newport Servant Single Female 17 1894 General servan it domestic Blunsdon Wilts

Show 1 fewer row A

Walter Jefferies died on 9t November 1939 and in his Will he appointed as his Executors
his wife Ethel Mary and Henry Broom Vines of Lower Farm, Bourton. Probate on Walter’s
Will was granted on 4t January 1940, but it was a further two years before Ethel Jefferies
decided to move on. A conveyance dated 17t September 1942 sold The Grange to Daisy
Liddiard Longland, described as the wife of Frank Longland of 95 Holly Lane, Erdington,
Warwick for £2300. When she sold the property in 1950, the conveyance gave more
information about her when she was described as a Registered Medical Practitioner. On 10t
July 1950, Daisy Longland from South Point, Cirencester, sold The Grange to Muriel Emily
Binns, also a Registered Medical Practitioner, of 9 Adelaide Terrace, Portishead, Bristol for

£5000. The price of the property had been literally doubling every few years.

With the property attracting the attention of medical practitioners, the trend continued with
the next occupier who was Dr Peter Frank Anthony Watkins of 2 Church Place, Swindon.
But unlike the trend of increasing value, the property was sold for £4000. The conveyance
was dated 11t August 1954. Dr Tony Watkins, as he preferred to be called, was a medical
officer for the railway company in Swindon and moved to Watchfield to be a partner with
Dr Ernest Algernon Sparks of Shrivenham, who’s practice would expand to become Elm

Tree Surgery that exists today. He turned part of The Grange into a waiting room and



surgery and practised there for many years. It seemed to work well with Dr Sparks covering
Shrivenham and Dr Watkins, Watchfield. Dr Sparkes moved on and the practice was
purchased by Dr Barry Dumughn in 1965. In 1973 Dr Tony Watkins decided to semi-retire
and move to Devon where he could continue to research his specialist interest in skin

diseases and partake more of his love of fishing.

From Devon, Alison Eirene Watkins, widow of Dr Tony had a conveyance drawn up dated
30t October 1975. Her address was given as Weir Mill, Drewsteignton, near Exeter, Devon.
She sold The Grange to Violet Marian Thompson, widow, for £20,000 and it’s likely that

Violet was a direct relative of Alison as she was also living at Weir Mill.

It was the conveyance that placed The Grange into the ownership of Violet Thompson that
caused the property to be entered in H.M. Land Registry that was dated 4t December 1975.
The Schedule on a Land Registry document listed that the next owners were Derek
Courtney and Diane Witts who purchased it on 11t January 1978. The same Schedule listed
that Robert James and Janet Susan Mawer purchased The Grange on 12t November 1984
and moved out in June 2007, selling it on to Mr & Mrs David and Becky Ridgeway

There have been many changes at the The Grange, formerly Beckett Home Farm, mainly

with the land that was once part of it being sold and developed with new housing.

Further research into the earlier history of the house.

Looking at the premises from the main street there are numerous points to suggest that it
has had structural alterations and could be made up of smaller units. The Willington map
of 1758 showed a building of similar shape and distance from the street, but there is no way
to ascertain its construction. The extract from the map below stated that No 13 was the

property of Mr Russley.



The Watchfield Census for 1841 listed William Addison with his family at Watchfield, but
as is usual with the census’ of that period, it does not describe where in the village. But there
are two important pieces of evidence that makes it more certain that he occupied Beckett
Home Farm. Firstly, the Addison listing is located within the listing immediately after
Watchfield House and the farmhouse was the next property along. Secondly, a newspaper
article dated 1846 gives details of a sale by auction of the farming stock and implements of

Mr Addison who is retiring.
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It is fairly certain that the Addisons moved to Medlar Cottage in Shrivenham. See SHS
Listing No N945 for further details. It’s likely that William decided to retire because of poor
health as he died in 1848 and was buried in St Andrew’s churchyard on the 8t May.

A study of the census lists suggested that it could have been a small farm of 34 acres
occupied by Richard Anger in 1851 to 1871. Below is an extract from a map of circa 1900 and

an extract from the census records for 1851. More research needs to be done to confirm this.




Richard Anger in 1851

1851 England, Wales & Scotland Census
Q Watchfield, Faringdon, Berkshire & Oxfordshire, England
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Household members (2 people)

First name(s) Last name Relationship Marital status Sex Age

Richard Anger Head Unmarried Male 51
Davis Servant Unmarried Female 39

Mary

Copy to clipboard

Birth year Occupation Birth place
1800 Farmer of 34 acres Watchfield, Berkshire, England
1812 Housekeeper Watchfield, Berkshire, England




